
AGENDA FOR REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING ON THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 
6:00 P.M. 

Held in the Council Chambers at Altoona City Hall, 1303 Lynn Avenue, Altoona, WI 

I. Call Meeting to Order. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance. 

Ill. Roll Call for Council Persons/Roll Call for Department Heads. 

IV. Citizens Participation Period. (No more than twenty minutes unless extended by two

thirds vote.) 

V. Discuss/consider approval of minutes of the August 11, 2022 Regular Council Meeting. 

VI. REPORTS 

A. City Officers/Department Heads 

B. City Committees 

VII . CONSENT AGENDA 

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Update by Mark Beckfield regarding the Veterans Memorial Foundation Project. 

2. Discuss/consider appointment of Council Member for District 5, Wards 9 and 10 to fill 
the vacant position for the remainder of term April 2023. 

3. Discuss/consider Mayoral Appointment and Chairperson to the following committees to 
fill the vacant Council Positions: 

A. Plan Commission 
B. Finance Committee 
C. Park & Rec Committee and Chairperson 

4. Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. (or as soon thereafter as is possible) to rezone 18.25 acres 
located at 257 Batilett Avenue (Parcel 201102401000, Lot 1, CSM 3757) from R-1 One 
Family Dwelling District (temporary assignment) to confirmation of zoning TH - Twin 
Home District and R3 Multiple Family Dwelling District. 

5. Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 8A-22, an ordinance rezoning 18.25 acres located 
at 257 Batilett Avenue (20110240 I 000) as mentioned in Item 4. (Discussed at the August 
16, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 

6. Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the Tree Inventory & Management Plan project. 
(Thurs material) 



7. Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the annual Tree Planting Program. (Thursday 
materials) 

8. Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the 10th Street Park Irrigation project. (Thursday 
materials) 

9. Discuss/consider awarding contract for the River Prairie Center Kitchen Improvement 
Project 

X. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

Cindy Bauer 
City Clerk 

Requests from persons with disabilities who need assistance to participate in this 
meeting/hearing should be made to the City Clerk's Office at 715-839-6092 with as much 
advance notice as possible. 

Speak Your Peace: The Civility Project 

The Common Council of the City of Altoona, Wisconsin, recognizes and has adopted by 
Resolution 38-15 that the nine tools of civility, drafted by Speak Your Peace: The Civility Project 
will provide increased opportunities for civil discourse in order to find positive resolutions to the 
issues that face our city. These tools include the following: 

Pay Attention I Listen I Be Inclusive I Don't Gossip I Show Respect I Be Agreeable 
Apologize I Give Constructive Criticism I Take Responsibility 



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes August 11, 2022 Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF ALTOONA, WI 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

August 11, 2022 

(I) Call Meeting to Order

Mayor Brendan Pratt called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  The Regular Council Meeting was held in 

person in the Council Chambers at Altoona City Hall, 1303 Lynn Avenue, WI.     

(II) Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Brendan Pratt led the Common Council and others in attendance in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

(III) Roll Call

City Clerk Cindy Bauer called the roll.  Council Persons Dale Stuber, Timothy Lima, Jon Olson, Mat-

thew Biren and Susan Rowe were present.  Also Present:  Attorney Justin Andrews, City Administrator Michael 

Golat, Assistant City Administrator Richard Downey, Police Chief Kelly Bakken, Finance Director Tina Nelson, 

City Engineer/Dir of Public Works (CE/DPW) David Walter, Fire Chief Mark Renderman, and City Clerk Cindy 

Bauer.   

(IV) Citizen Participation Period

There being no Citizen Participation, motion by Biren/Lima to close the Citizen Participation Period. 

Motion carried.   

(V) Approval of minutes.

Motion by Lima/Stuber to approve the minutes of the July 28, 2022, Regular Council Meeting.  Motion 

carried.   

(VI) City Officers/Department Heads Report

City Administrator Michael Golat thanked Clerk Bauer and Election staff for their participation in the 

August 9, 2022 Election.  Golat commented on the new play structure at Tenth Street Park.  

CE/DPW Walter updated the Council on the Daniels Avenue Street Construction which one of the 

components will start the end of this month and then other work to start after Labor Day. 

Fire Chief Renderman commented that EMS Fire Calls are 678 so far to date as of July 2022.  

Police Chief Kelly Bakken updated the Council on police officer hiring; currently hiring one full time 

police officer.  National Night Out was last week (Aug 2) and was well attended.  Bakken also commented that 

they are working on a new program, partnering with the WI State Patrol, to do a volunteer preliminary breath 

test (PBT) on Aug 24 to educate the public on OWI, PBT at River Prairie Park.  Educational materials will be 

available.  Bakken updated the Council on Police Dept. cases.   

City Committee Reports – 

(VII) Consent Agenda – None

(VIII) Unfinished Business - None

(IX) New Business

(1) Discuss/consider approval of Resolution 8A-22, A resolution authorizing the closing of books of account

for the year ended December 31, 2021 and to accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 2021.  

(Discussed at the August 11, 2022 Finance Committee Meeting.) 

City Administrator Golat explained that following completion of the Auditor’s presentation, given at the 

August 11, 2022 Finance Committee meeting, staff recommended Council approve a motion to authorize closing 

the books of account for 2021 and to accept the City’s 2021 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as presented. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
August 11, 2022 Minutes | Page 1 of 3



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes August 11, 2022 Page 2 of 3 

Council Members were provided the 2021 Financial Statement and Communication Letters.  Council Members 

were also provided a summary of the Financials prepared by CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP). 

Some suggestions from the audit team that staff is currently looking at are: 

1. Give the checks (after they have been printed and stamped) to an employee that is not involved in the

cash disbursement process to review and mail.  The employee would print a list of checks from Work-

horse and double check the Workhorse list with the checks to make sure the vendor and amount

matches.  I am not sure how easy this would be to implement but just an idea to help separate more func-

tions related to the cash disbursement cycle.

2. Look into positive pay with banks.

3. Create a record retention policy.

4. Approve a new procurement policy that follows Federal Single Audit Uniform Guidance.

Motion by Lima/Biren to approve Resolution 8A-22, a resolution authorizing the closing of books of 

account for the year ended December 31, 2021 and to accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 

2021. Motion carried. 

(IX)(2) Discuss/consider approval of Resolution 8B -22, A Resolution amending the General, Capital, ARPA 

and NEI 2022 Budgets 

Finance Director Tina Nelson explained Resolution 8B-22.  This budget amendment accounts for the 

following items: 

Boys & Girls Club of the Chippewa Valley Support  $ 25,000.00 

Use of ARPA-Local Fiscal Recovery Funds  $179,886.63 

2022 NIF-Container Park Grant Project Revenues & Expenses $168,986.63 

2022 NIF-Public Safety Grant Project Revenues & Expenses $ 71,000.00 

Solis Circle Roof Replacement Project  $ 80,000.00 

Law Enforcement Agency Initiative Grand Revenues & Expenses $ 23,087.00 

Property Acquisition (3rd Street) $ 61,785.00 

Well Site Property Purchase (Prairie View Ridge) $ 65,200.00 

Motion by Biren/Lima to approve Resolution 8B-22, a Resolution amending the 2022 General, Capital, 

ARPA & NEI Budgets.  Motion carried. 

(IX)(3) Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the Solis Circle Roof Replacement project. 

CE/DPW explained the bid tabulation of the results of a bid opening held on July 27, 2022 for the above 

project.  The roof at Solis Circle is due for a replacement and is also the first step prior to installing the solar panels 

funded via a grant.  Walter said the bidding documents were structured with a base bid for asphalt shingles, with 

a bid alternate for standing-seam metal panels.  As you can see, standing-seam metal panels are substantially more 

expensive than asphalt shingles, and staff recommendation is to proceed with the base bid.  The roof replacement 

will be funded through the designated Solis Circle fund.  Although only one bid was submitted, staff research 

suggests that the price is within industry standards.  Staff contacted references and received favorable feedback on 

the bidder. 

Motion by Lima/Biren to approve a base bid contract with C&A Custom Contractors, LLC for $79,925.00 

for the replacement of the Solis Circle roof.  Motion carried. 

(IX)(4) Discuss/consider approval of an easement to TDS Metrocom LLC for placement of equipment on 

City property. 

CE/DPW David Walter explained that TDS Metrocom LLC has declared their intent to construct a network 

throughout Altoona to provide phone, internet, and TV services.  Construction of the network will require control 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
August 11, 2022 Minutes | Page 2 of 3



Draft Minutes 

City of Altoona, WI Council Meeting Minutes August 11, 2022 Page 3 of 3 
 

cabinets placed at two locations within the city.  The first proposed location is on the corner of the Well #6 property 

at 1106 Devney Drive.  Public Works has reviewed the requested location and has determined it does not present 

an obstacle to use of the property now or in the future for well operations.  The proposed easement, including a 

drawing was attached for Council review.  TDS Metrocom is proposing to reimburse the City $5,000 for the 

easement. 

 Motion by Lima/Biren to approve an easement to TDS for placement of equipment on City property. 

Motion carried. 

 

(IX)(5)  Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the USH 12 Utility Extension project. 

CE/DPW Walter explained that the 2022 budget includes a capital project for extending sanitary sewer 

and watermain along USH 12 to serve City property on the northeast corner of USH 12 and County Highway SS.  

The project also serves to connect the existing water distribution system to the Well #8 site.  Ayres Associates was 

selected to design the project, and the bid opening was held on Monday, August 8, 2022.  Council Members were 

provided copies of the two bids; one from Haas Sons and the other from A-1 Excavating.  The Base Bid included 

installation of ductile iron water main, with an alternate for PVC.  The availability of ductile iron is such that one 

shipment would arrive in November with the other in December according to the contractor.  PVC pipe is 

immediately available and is lower in cost, therefore, Staff recommended award of the project based upon Bid 

Alternate #1 to include PVC pipe.   

Motion by Lima/Biren to approve awarding a contract for the USH 12 Utility Extension project to A-1 

Excavating with the bid alternate as recommended by staff to go with alternate 1, therefore reducing the amount 

and bringing it a total of $1,657, 655.  Motion carried. 

 

(IX)(6) Discuss/consider approving an Update to the City’s Classification and Compensation Study by  

Carlson Dettmann. 

City Administrator Golat explained that the city last updated its classification and compensation study in 

2019 and implemented the findings of the study for the 2020 budget year.   In 2021 the City implemented a 

structural adjustment of 1% to the wage table, and in 2022 the table was adjusted by 2.5%. However, the 2021 

actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) was 7% and the current year to date CPI for July 2022 is currently 8.5% year 

over year. 

 City Administrator Golat commented that the current labor market is very tight. As an example, Golat 

noted that it took us six months to recruit a replacement for our City Planner. Further, we recently had a 

failed search for filling a police officer position and have lost two police officers to the private sector.  City 

Administrator Golat referred to some articles on the current state of public sector labor, that illustrate the many 

challenges associated with recruiting and retaining public sector employees. 

City Administrator Golat mentioned that to assure the City remains competitive in today's labor market, 

staff is recommending that the City's classification and compensation study be updated. The City received a 

proposal from Carlson Dettman to update the study for $8,000 that would revise the City's wage structure based 

on comparable.  

Motion by Biren/Lima to approve an Update to the City's Classification and Compensation Study by 

Carlson Dettmann for $8,000 and to amend the budget if necessary to pay for the update.  Motion carried. 

 

(X)  Miscellaneous Business and Communication. 

  

(XI)  Adjournment. 

 Motion by Biren/Lima to adjourn at 6:41 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

Minutes submitted by Cindy Bauer, City Clerk 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
August 11, 2022 Minutes | Page 3 of 3



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022  Page 1 of 4 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM:  Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

(VII) CONSENT AGENDA

(VIII) UNFINISHED BUSINESS

(IX) NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 1 - Update by Mark Beckfield regarding the Veterans Memorial Foundation Project.

Mark Beckfield from the Eau Claire County Veterans Tribute Foundation will be present to give an update 

on the next phase of the Veterans Memorial Foundation Project. 

ITEM 2 - Discuss/consider appointment of Council Member for District 5, Wards 9 and 10 to fill the 

vacant position for the remainder of term April 2023. 

As you are aware, Council Member Tim Sexton resigned as Council Member effective July 29, 2022 due 

to moving out of the City of Altoona.  His Council seat is now vacant.  Consistent with Altoona Municipal 

Code, the Council is required to appoint a replacement from a pool of interested applicants. 

Vacancy notices inviting applications from interested citizens were placed in the Leader Telegram, the 

City’s website, Facebook, City’s weekly e-newsletter, and a media release to local media.  The deadline for 

submitting applications/resumes was August 17, 2022 at 2:00 p.m.  

The term for appointment will be until April 18, 2023 at which time the selected council person can take 

out nomination papers in December 2022 to be on the April 2023 Spring Ballot.  

Clerk Bauer received three applications.  Those applicants have been invited to the meeting to make a 

presentation regarding their interest in the position. After the presentation is completed, Council will be 

asked whether their preference is to vote by a voice vote or by private ballot for their preferred candidate. 

Since there are three candidates, a first ballot will be taken. If no applicant receives a majority of votes 

during the first ballot, the candidate receiving the lowest number of votes will be dropped and a second 

vote will be taken on the remaining two candidates.    

After the Council selects the new Council Member, Clerk Bauer will swear in the newly appointed Council 

Member and the selected candidate will take their seat that evening.      

City Council | August 25, 2022 
Council Summary | Page 1 of 4



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022  Page 2 of 4 

ITEM 3 - Discuss/consider Mayoral Appointment and Chairperson to the following committees to 

fill the vacant Council Positions:  

A. Plan Commission

B. Finance Committee

C. Park & Rec Committee and Chairperson

Due to the resignation of Council Representative Tim Sexton, the above mentioned committees have 

vacancies.  Per Municipal Code Chapter 2.08.060 “Vacancy filling”, Vacancies in elective offices shall be 

filled as follows:  C.  In all other elective offices, by appointment by the mayor, subject to confirmation by 

the Council.   

The Mayor is recommending the following Council Members to fill those vacant positions.  

A. Plan Commission - Sue Rowe

B. Finance Committee - The newly appointed Council Person

C. Park & Rec Committee and Chairperson - The newly appointed Council Person to serve

on the committee and be appointed the Chairperson for the Park & Rec Committee.

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve the mayoral appointments and chairperson as 

recommended by Mayor Pratt to serve on the aforementioned committees. 

ITEM 4 - Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. (or as soon thereafter as is possible) to rezone 18.25 acres 

located at 257 Bartlett Avenue (Parcel 201102401000, Lot 1, CSM 3757) from R-1 One Family 

Dwelling District (temporary assignment) to confirmation of zoning TH Twin Home District and R3 

Multiple Family Dwelling District as submitted by Craig Wurzer. 

See Enclosed: 

● Staff Report 22-08A

● Application for Rezoning

● Rezoning Application Package

● Proposed Ordinance 8A-22

As you may recall, the City Council approved the Preliminary Plat for “Bartlett Crossing” on July 14, 

2022, which comprised approximately 18.25 acres located at 257 Bartlett Avenue, annexed to the City 

on June 23rd. Per Altoona Municipal Code, the property is assigned R1 Zone until the Plan Commission 

recommends and Council approves another district. 

The easterly 5.49 acres of the territory is proposed for TH-Twin Home Zoning assignment, to be 

developed as 24 twin home lots. The westerly 12.76 acres is proposed for R3 Multiple Family Dwelling 

District Zoning assignment, to be developed with 162 dwellings. These dwellings are in two general 

configurations: townhouse-style apartments in 8-, 10-, and 14- dwelling structures, and two 12-dwelling 

“barbell” configurations similar to those developed in the Prairie View Ridge subdivision.  

See enclosed Staff Report 22-08A and Rezoning Application for further description. 

Suggested motion:  I move to close the public hearing. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
Council Summary | Page 2 of 4



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022  Page 3 of 4 

ITEM 5 - Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 8A-22 an ordinance rezoning 18.25 acres located 

at 257 Bartlett Avenue (#201102401000, Lot 1, CSM 3757) as mentioned in Item 4. (Discussed at the 

August 16, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 

See ITEM 4 for materials and summary. 

Staff finds the proposal as consistent with the City of Altoona Comprehensive Plan, and recommends 

approval of Ordinance 8A-22, rezoning 18.25 acres TH and R3 Districts as proposed, and Outlots 2-5 

of that same plat “P Public and Conservancy District”.  

The Plan Commission unanimously recommended approval of the staff recommendation on August 

16th, 2022. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve Ordinance 8A-22. 

ITEM 6 - Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the Tree Inventory & Management Plan project. 

The 2022 budget includes a capital project for compiling an inventory of trees in public space and a 

management plan.  This is the next step in our urban forestry efforts, and is funded in part by a grant from 

the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources.  The purpose of this effort is to better prepare the City for 

future challenges similar to the Emerald Ash Borer, Oak Wilt, and other diseases and pests, and to guide 

our ongoing tree planting and maintenance efforts. 

Proposals are due on August 23rd, and staff will distribute a summary and recommendation prior to the 

Council meeting. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve awarding a contract for the Tree Inventory & 

Management Plan project to ____________, in the amount of $___________. 

ITEM 7 - Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the annual Tree Planting Program. 

As you may be aware, the City has systematically removed ash trees in conformance with the Emerald Ash 

Borer Mitigation plan.  Removals on public property are now complete.  The City is in its 4th year of 

replacement plantings, and this year’s budget includes funds to continue.  The City solicited proposals for 

supply and planting of 50 trees in various locations throughout the city.  This urban forestry effort is also 

funded in part by a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources grant 

Proposals are due on August 23rd, and staff will distribute a summary and recommendation prior to the 

Council meeting. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve awarding a contract for the annual Tree Planting 

Program to ____________, in the amount of $___________. 

City Council | August 25, 2022
Council Summary | Page 3 of 4



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022  Page 4 of 4 

ITEM 8 - Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the 10th Street Park Irrigation project. 

Included in the 2022 budget is a project to install an irrigation system within 10th Street Park.  The scope 

of the project will include all remaining non-irrigated sections.  The ballfield has a separate dedicated 

system in place.  The proposed system will also aid in establishing healthy turf around the perimeter of the 

Fish House. 

Proposals are due on August 22nd, and staff will distribute a summary and recommendation prior to the 

Council meeting. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve awarding a contract for the 10th Street Park Irrigation 

project to ____________, in the amount of $___________. 

ITEM 9 - Discuss/consider awarding contract for the River Prairie Center Kitchen Improvement 

Project. 

As you are aware, the City is partnering with its new operator of River Prairie Center, Hospitality 

Management T & T, to purchase equipment and complete other upgrades necessary to make the RPC 

kitchen a fully functional kitchen as opposed to its current “catering” kitchen configuration. The City issued 

a request for proposals for the work and equipment which are due on August 25, 2022 at 1 PM. Staff will 

send Council the proposals and review them before the Council meeting. At the Council meeting staff will 

provide a recommendation to Council regarding selection of a vendor to complete the work. Attached for 

your review is the request for proposals that was issued. 

Suggested Motion:  I move to approve/not approve awarding a contract for the River Prairie Center Kitchen 

Improvement Project  to ____________, in the amount of $___________.. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
Council Summary | Page 4 of 4



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022  Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM:  Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

(IX) NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 1 - Update by Mark Beckfield regarding the Veterans Memorial Foundation Project.

Mark Beckfield from the Eau Claire County Veterans Tribute Foundation will be present to give an update 

on the next phase of the Veterans Memorial Foundation Project. 

City Council | August 25, 2022
New Business | Item 1 | Page 1 of 1



 

 
 

City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022                 Page 1 of 1 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Altoona City Council 

 

FROM:  Michael Golat, City Administrator 

 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

 

(IX) NEW BUSINESS 

 

ITEM 2 - Discuss/consider appointment of Council Member for District 5, Wards 9 and 10 to fill the 

vacant position for the remainder of term April 2023. 

As you are aware, Council Member Tim Sexton resigned as Council Member effective July 29, 2022 due 

to moving out of the City of Altoona.  His Council seat is now vacant.  Consistent with Altoona Municipal 

Code, the Council is required to appoint a replacement from a pool of interested applicants. 

Vacancy notices inviting applications from interested citizens were placed in the Leader Telegram, the 

City’s website, Facebook, City’s weekly e-newsletter, and a media release to local media.  The deadline for 

submitting applications/resumes was August 17, 2022 at 2:00 p.m.  

The term for appointment will be until April 18, 2023 at which time the selected council person can take 

out nomination papers in December 2022 to be on the April 2023 Spring Ballot.  

Clerk Bauer received three applications.  Those applicants have been invited to the meeting to make a 

presentation regarding their interest in the position. After the presentation is completed, Council will be 

asked whether their preference is to vote by a voice vote or by private ballot for their preferred candidate. 

Since there are three candidates, a first ballot will be taken. If no applicant receives a majority of votes 

during the first ballot, the candidate receiving the lowest number of votes will be dropped and a second 

vote will be taken on the remaining two candidates.    

After the Council selects the new Council Member, Clerk Bauer will swear in the newly appointed Council 

Member and the selected candidate will take their seat that evening.        

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 1 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 2 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 3 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 4 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 5 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 6 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 7 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 8 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 9 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 10 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 11 of 12



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 2 | Page 12 of 12



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022  Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM:  Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

(IX) NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 3 - Discuss/consider Mayoral Appointment and Chairperson to the following committees to 

fill the vacant Council Positions:  

A. Plan Commission

B. Finance Committee

C. Park & Rec Committee and Chairperson

Due to the resignation of Council Representative Tim Sexton, the above mentioned committees have 

vacancies.  Per Municipal Code Chapter 2.08.060 “Vacancy filling”, Vacancies in elective offices shall be 

filled as follows:  C.  In all other elective offices, by appointment by the mayor, subject to confirmation by 

the Council.   

The Mayor is recommending the following Council Members to fill those vacant positions.  

A. Plan Commission - Sue Rowe

B. Finance Committee - The newly appointed Council Person

C. Park & Rec Committee and Chairperson - The newly appointed Council Person to serve

on the committee and be appointed the Chairperson for the Park & Rec Committee.

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve the mayoral appointments and chairperson as 

recommended by Mayor Pratt to serve on the aforementioned committees. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 3 | Page 1 of 1



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM: Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

(IX) NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 4 - Public Hearing at 6:00 p.m. (or as soon thereafter as is possible) to rezone 18.25 acres 

located at 257 Bartlett Avenue (Parcel 201102401000, Lot 1, CSM 3757) from R-1 One Family 

Dwelling District (temporary assignment) to confirmation of zoning TH Twin Home District and R3 

Multiple Family Dwelling District as submitted by Craig Wurzer. 

See Enclosed: 

● Staff Report 22-08A

● Application for Rezoning

● Rezoning Application Package

● Proposed Ordinance 8A-22

As you may recall, the City Council approved the Preliminary Plat for “Bartlett Crossing” on July 14, 

2022, which comprised approximately 18.25 acres located at 257 Bartlett Avenue, annexed to the City 

on June 23rd. Per Altoona Municipal Code, the property is assigned R1 Zone until the Plan Commission 

recommends and Council approves another district. 

The easterly 5.49 acres of the territory is proposed for TH-Twin Home Zoning assignment, to be 

developed as 24 twin home lots. The westerly 12.76 acres is proposed for R3 Multiple Family Dwelling 

District Zoning assignment, to be developed with 162 dwellings. These dwellings are in two general 

configurations: townhouse-style apartments in 8-, 10-, and 14- dwelling structures, and two 12-dwelling 

“barbell” configurations similar to those developed in the Prairie View Ridge subdivision. 

See enclosed Staff Report 22-08A and Rezoning Application for further description. 

Suggested motion: I move to close the public hearing. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 1 of 34



ITEM 5 - Discuss/consider approval of Ordinance 8A-22 an ordinance rezoning 18.25 acres located 

at 257 Bartlett Avenue (#201102401000, Lot 1, CSM 3757) as mentioned in Item 4. (Discussed at the 

August 16, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 

 

See ITEM 4 for materials and summary. 

 
Staff finds the proposal as consistent with the City of Altoona Comprehensive Plan, and recommends 

approval of Ordinance 8A-22, rezoning 18.25 acres TH and R3 Districts as proposed, and Outlots 2-5 

of that same plat “P Public and Conservancy District”. 

 
The Plan Commission unanimously recommended approval of the staff recommendation on August 

16th, 2022. 

 
Suggested motion: I move to approve/not approve Ordinance 8A-22. 

 

 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 2 of 34



Address 257 Bartlett Avenue 

Parcel ID 201-1024-01-000

Application Rezoning / Zoning Assignment 

Prepared By Joshua Clements, AICP, City Planning Consultant 

Applicant Craig Wurzer, 1750 Hallie Road, Chippewa Falls, WI 54729 

Owner(s) John, Michael, and Francis Schmidt, 400 Sunday Drive, Altoona, WI 54720 

Parcel Description Lengthy. See Ordinance 6A-22 

Requested Action Zoning Assignment  

Proposal Summary The City Council approved an appeal for Annexation by Unanimous Consent, Ordinance 
6A-22, on June 23, 2022 (DOA CASE #14508) for one parcel comprising approximately 
19.64 acres. Per Altoona Municipal Code § 19.24.030, the property is assigned R1 Zone 
until the Plan Commission recommends and Council approves another district, to be 
considered within 120 days of the annexation. 

The entire property is part of the Preliminary Plat for Bartlett Crossing, approved by the 
City Council on July 14, 2022. The easterly 5.49 acres is proposed for TH Twin Home 
Zoning assignment. The westerly 12.76 acres is proposed for R3 Multiple Family 
Dwelling District Zoning assignment. The proposed zoning assignments correspond to 
the platting arrangement and corresponding land uses proposed by the applicant.  

The twin home zone area is proposed to be comprised of 24 twin home lots (12 twin 
homes), plus one outlot for stormwater and one outlot for parkland dedication.  

The proposed R3 zone area is to be developed with 162 dwellings in two general 
building configurations: townhouse-style apartments in 8-, 10-, and 14- dwelling 
structures, and two 12-dwelling “barbell” configurations similar to those developed in 
the Prairie View Ridge subdivision. 

These land use arrangements have been approved through the preliminary platting 
stage. The rezoning was intended to be considered simultaneously to the preliminary 
plat, however, the procedural requirement of the Council receiving the rezoning 
application and referring to the Plan Commission separated the actions in scheduling. 

Submittals Enclosed in the August 16, 2022 Plan Commission Packet: 

(1) Application for Rezoning
(2) Preliminary Plat (approved)

Applicable Standards City of Altoona Comprehensive Plan (2022) 

Title 19: Zoning 

Public Hearing City Council, August 25, 2022 [Scheduled] 

Approval Authority City Council, upon recommendation by the Plan Commission (August 16) 

SUMMARY 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 3 of 34

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


Reviewed By Planning Department; 

Staff Recommendation Approve the application of TH and R3 Zone District, and recommend the application 
of P District for Outlots 2-5. 

Zoning & Land Use The current land use of the parcel is a single detached dwelling. 

Above: Territory for Rezoning (2020 Eau Claire County aerial image) 

319 Bartlett Avenue Zoning Land Use 

Subject Site R-1 (Temporary) Detached Dwelling – 257 Bartlett Avenue 

West R1L (EC County) 
Single Dwelling – Large Lot 

Detached Dwelling - 319 Bartlett Avenue 

North I Industrial District Union Pacific Railroad 

East R-1 Kayson Place Subdivision 

South R-1 Hillcrest Estates Manufactured Home 
Community 

Background Information 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 4 of 34

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


Above: Existing / Proposed Zoning Assignment. Subject area bounded in BLUE dashed line. 
Below: Proposed Zoning and Land Use Arrangement, Bartlett Crossing 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 5 of 34

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


Proposed Land Use Twin Home Dwellings; Multi-Dwelling Structures; Parkland; Public Right-of-Way 

The 2022 City of Altoona Comprehensive Plan identifies the area as “Planned 
Neighborhood Type B”. The proposed uses and land use arrangement is generally 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  

Criteria for Approval The most relevant ordinance sections that provide the principal regulatory guidelines 
and standards are as follows: 

• 2022 Comprehensive Plan

• 19.68 Amendments

Zoning Statement 

The proposed plat area is divided into an area for Twin Home Zone District, permitting side-by-side two-dwelling 
attached structures (“twin-home”), and multi-dwelling structure area R3 Zone District. The illustrations of 
structures included in this section are examples provided by City Staff and are for reference purposes only. 

The R3 area has two general structure types, “stacked townhouse” style attached dwellings, where one dwelling 
is immediately above another (stacked), in rows. In this proposal, the rows are 8, 10, and 14 total dwellings. This 
style is substantially similar to 1152 North Hillcrest Parkway and 3604 Spooner Avenue. Garage entrances are from 
the building rear, with “front doors” to the first level dwellings facing the public street or outward.  

Above: 3604 Spooner Avenue (Google Streetview, October 2021) 

Above: 1152 North Hillcrest, front (May 2021) 

Conformance with 
Comprehensive Plan 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 6 of 34

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


Above: Above: 1152 North Hillcrest, rear (Oct 2021) 

The second building type is substantially similar to those constructed in “Prairie View Ridge” in Altoona and several 
other locations in the region. These “barbell” structures have vehicle garages on two wider ends, with dwellings 
in the center. Two 12-dwelling structures are proposed near the south line of the property.  

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 7 of 34

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


Above: Proposed Land Use Arrangement, Bartlett Crossing 

As briefly displayed below and included in the applicant’s materials, the proposed development intensity is below 
the minimum lot area (density) standards in Altoona Municipal Code. 

Development Intensity* 

Proposed TH Density: 6.65 dwellings/acre Proposed R3 Density: 16.93 dwellings/acre 

Permitted TH Density: 9.68 dwellings/acre Permitted R3 Density: 25.83 dwellings/acre 

Percent of Permitted: 68.7%  Percent of Permitted: 65.5% 

*- Based upon number of dwellings and lots, per established formula, net area. Net area is excluding street 
area, stormwater, and parkland, per computation definition. 

The proposed land use intensity and lot characteristics meet land division standards (Title 18) and 
standards by zoning district (Title 19).  

NOTE: The rezoning criteria do not include site-specific or building design standards. Per Altoona Code, all 
structures with three or more dwellings require site plan review. However, city staff have discussed building 
types and land arrangements cognizant of desirable neighborhood design characteristics with the applicant 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 8 of 34

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


for the past several months with various iterations resulting in the current proposal. The proposed 
arrangement is generally responsive to most comments and recommendations provided by staff. 

NOTE: Approval of the Preliminary Plat does not constitute approval or recommendation regarding proposed 
zoning. The zoning action shall take place as a separate action due to timing of referral of rezoning from the 
City Council to the Plan Commission. 

NOTE: Site Plans are required for all lots within areas proposed to be zoned R3. Site plans are not required or 
scrutinized as integral to the plat. 

Section 19.68 “Amendments”, more specifically 19.68.050 “Factors to be considered”: [ordinance text in bold, 
staff analysis below] 

In deciding upon any petition for an amendment or rezoning, factors which a council may consider include, but 

are not limited to, the following:  

A. Whether the requested amendment is justified by a change in conditions since the original title is adopted

or by an error in the original text;

The territory has been annexed to the City of Altoona and temporary assigned R1 One Family Dwelling District 

zoning, per City Ordinance. The zoning action is required to confirm the temporary zoning or to assign a different 

district. The territory was annexed at the appeal of the owner as part of a development interest. 

B. The precedence, and the possible effects of such precedence, which might likely result in approval or denial

of the petition;

The proposed land uses are generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Map. 

C. The ability of the city or other government agencies to provide any services, facilities, and/or programs that

might be required if the petition were approved;

The property is adjacent to an existing City/County Road, recently reconstructed with stormwater and pedestrian 

infrastructure. The property is served by existing municipal sewer and water.   

D. The possibility of any significant and negative environmental impacts which would reasonably occur if the

petition zoning changed or resulting permitted structures were built; including, but not limited to, surface water

drainage problems, waste water disposal problems, or the loss of locally valuable natural resources;

Environmental assessments have been completed in conjunction with the preliminary plat. These studies indicate 

that no wetlands or endangered species are present during the time of survey.  

The land development shall be required to meet city storm water standards. 

E. The compatibility of the proposed uses associated with the petitioned zoning change to existing or planned

uses with the immediate area;

There are no identified harms or likely induced nuisances created upon existing or planned uses that may cause 

incompatibility.  

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 9 of 34

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


F. The effective approval of the petition on adopted development policies of the city;

Adopting zoning changes does not affect development policies; it is to be a reflection of and consistent with 

development policies as expressed in the Comprehensive Plan.  

The proposed zoning is generally consistent with the 2022 Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map. The 

Comprehensive Plan identifies this territory as “Planned Neighborhood Type B”, which is defined as “A carefully 

planned mix of single dwelling unit detached or attached, two-dwelling, multi-dwelling, small scale business, 

community facilities, and parks, recreation, and conservancy uses consistent with Traditional Neighborhood 

Design principles and forms of development at a minimum of 6 dwelling units per gross acre.” 

The proposed change is consistent with development policies of the city to improve fiscal solvency, promote a 

diversity of housing choices, orderly and rational development of the city, economic development opportunities, 

and efficient use of infrastructure. 

G. The compliance of the proposed rezoning with the policies of the comprehensive plan of the city.

See F., above. 

---- 

Proposed Modifications to the Appeal 

Outlots 2 and 5 of the approved Preliminary Plat are to be dedicated to the City of Altoona for storm water 

facilities. Outlots 3 and 4 are to be dedicated to the City as parkland. Staff recommends these parcels be assigned 

“P Public and Conservancy District”. Uses in this district are generally restricted to public facilities, recreation, and 

environmental stewardship purposes. This District better fits the dedicated uses of the properties. 

Staff Recommendation Planning Department recommends the City Council approve the application of TH Twin 
Home District and R3 Multiple Family Dwelling District as proposed and assigning 
Outlots 2-5 “P Public and Conservancy District”. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 10 of 34

mailto:cityhall@ci.altoona.wi.us


City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 11 of 34



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 12 of 34



711 S. Hillcrest Parkway    Altoona, WI  54720 
Phone:  (715) 831-0654 

EVERYDAY SURVEYING & ENGINEERING LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

to: from: 

 
sender:  Mark Erickson 
 
date:  June 8, 2022 

City of Altoona 
Attn: Joshua Clements 
1303 Lynn Avenue 
Altoona, WI  54720 

document: submitted: via: 
☒ letter ☐ contracts ☐ at your request ☐ mail 
☐ report ☐ pay request ☒ for your information / use ☐ express mail 
☒ drawing / plan ☐ change order ☒ for your review / comment ☒ messenger 
☐ specifications ☐ invoice ☐ for your action ☐ pickup 
☐ other    ☐ for your approval / signature 
 
 
Please note: 

☐  revisions ☐  additions ☐  deletions ☐  other 

information: 

Items attached: 

comments: 

 

 
 
 

 

description: revision: date: copies: 
Letter to City of Altoona                                                                                              .         

Bartlett Crossing Narrative and Community Impact Statement 

Bartlett Community Impact Calculations 

Density by Zoning District  

Density by Multi-Family District 

Density by Twin Home District 

Zoning Exhibit 

Lot Layout Exhibit  

Utility Layout 

Multi-Family Rezoning Boundary Legal Description 

Twin Home Rezoning Boundary Legal Description 

Recorded CSM                           .                 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 13 of 34



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 14 of 34



Everyday Surveying and Engineering, LLC 
C i v i l  E n g i n e e r i n g   •   L a n d  S u r v e y i n g

Bartlett Crossing 
Proposed Subdivision 

Community Impact Statement & Narrative 

CDPG Developers are very exciting to bring forth Bartlett Crossing to the City of Altoona.  
Bartlett Crossing subdivision will offer twelve (12) Twin Homes Buildings and a variety of Multi-
Family Building along the south side of Bartlett Avenue and slightly west of Altoona Elementary 
School on Altoona’s east side.  This development will allow many families the opportunity to be 
part of the Altoona community and to take advantage of all it has to all to offer.  

CDPG Developers is comprised of four (4) local and talented team members that are all very 
well respected and have been successful in their respective businesses located in the Chippewa 
Valley.  The acronym of their company’s name CDPG stands for: 
Craig Wurzer of C & E Wurzer Builders 
Damian Prince of Chippewa Valley Excavating 
Paul Holzinger of Holzinger Homes 
Grady Wold of Trend Stone Surfaces    

This development will be completed in phases over the next two to three years.  When fully 
completed it will bring forth to the City of Altoona on-site Park Land for the residences, nearly a 
half mile of public road, and a population between 360 to 390 people.  The land will be 
appropriately rezoned to meet the end usage of approximately 5.5 acres for Twin Homes and 
12.8 acres for Multi-Family.  By their respective zoning districts land area, this will yield a density 
of 0.30 acres per unit for the Twin Home District and 0.08 acres per unit for the Multi-Family 
district.  This type of land use and density is comparable to the zoning code density guidelines 
of 0.10 acres per unit for Twin Home District and 0.039 acres per unit of the Multi-Family 
District. 

The project is proposed to create three (3) new public roadways along with the associated 
public utility extension that are currently available from Bartlett Avenue.  The public roadway 
and infrastructure systems will be fully installed by the development team and turned over to 
the City with no cost borne by the City.  The public roadway will have an expected life to be near 
20 years and the public infrastructure expected life to be near 50 years.  The systems will be 
designed in compliance with the City’s regulations and fully accessible for emergency service 
vehicles.  The roadway will be built in concert with their respective adjacent land usage.  Road A 
will be connected with the existing terminus of Kayson Place’s Cul-De-Sac, while creating loop  

711 S. Hillcrest Parkway  •  Altoona, WI 54720 
P  715.831.0654    www.esellc.co 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 15 of 34



Everyday Surveying and Engineering, LLC 
C i v i l  E n g i n e e r i n g   •   L a n d  S u r v e y i n g

711 S. Hillcrest Parkway  •  Altoona, WI  54720 
P  715.831.0654    www.esellc.co 

along the southern limits and ultimately connecting back to Bartlett Avenue on the north.  
Portions of Road A in the Mulit-Family District will be a back-to-back curb width of 37 feet wide 
allowing parking on one side of the street during the winter months.  Road B & C and portions 
of Road A located within the Twin Home District will provide a back-to-back curb width of 32 
feet wide.   

The land set aside for Park Land for both the Twin Home and Mulit-Family areas will be 
dedicated to the City.  The existing storm water pond with in the Kayson Place development will 
be connected with the proposed storm water pond for the Twin Home District thus creating a 
semi-regional storm water pond system and using the land to the fullest.  The Multi-Family and 
the Twin Home Districts will pond areas will be dedicate to the City for storm water pond / 
facilities, as has been done in the past. 

The Altoona Elementary School property is located approximately 320 feet away and up 1,200 
feet away to the east of this site.  The school district officials, with their best educated guess, 
use the baseline that there are 0.45 students per every dwelling unit.  Bartlett Crossing’s 
projected unit count is 186 units or what would be rounded up to 84 possible students.  This 
would be compared to the approximately 1, 700 of students in the district, showing a potential 
student body increase of less than 5%, dispersed between all the school districts buildings / 
campuses.             

Costs associated with the new public roadways and utilities along with the potential increase in 
the students would perceivably be offset by the expected increase in tax revenues. 

The CDPG Developers are looking forward to another successful development, bringing their 
hometown spirit and workmanship to the City of Altoona for a beautiful development. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 16 of 34



Twin Home Buildings Infrastructure

# of Buildings 12 Total Estimated Cost 1,400,000$              

Valuation Per Twin Home 640,000$                  Roads, Sidewalk, & Excavation Cost 780,000$                 

Twin Home Value 7,680,000$               Utility Cost 620,000$                 

Multi‐Family (R3) School District

8 Unit Building # of Dwelling 186 

# of Buildings 2 # of Students (per Dwelling) 0.45 

Valuation Per Building 1,700,000$               # of Students Total 84 

8 Unit Value 3,400,000$               State Aid per Pupil 7,565$   635,460$        

Categorical Funding per Pupil 1,423$   119,532$        

10 Unit Building Local Cost Share per Pupil 3,240$   272,160$        

# of Buildings 8

Valuation Per Building 2,100,000$               City of Altoona

8 Unit Value 16,800,000$            Service Cost per Unit Not Determined

12 Unit Building

# of Buildings 2

Valuation Per Building 2,350,000$              

8 Unit Value 4,700,000$              

14 Unit Building

# of Buildings 3

Valuation Per Building 2,850,000$              

8 Unit Value 8,550,000$              

Total Valuation 41,130,000$           

10 Year Projected Taxes

Total Property Tax 0.021544 886,105$                  8,861,047$  

City Rate 0.006564 269,977$                  2,699,773$  

County Rate 0.004200 172,746$                  1,727,460$  

School District 0.009844 404,884$                  4,048,837$  

Tech College 0.000935 38,457$   384,566$  

1,772,168$               17,721,683$  

Bartlett Crossing ‐ Community Impact Calculations

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 17 of 34



Total Number  Acres per Square Feet Units per

S.F. Acre of Units Unit per Unit Acre

Twin Home District 238,929         5.49          18 0.30  13,274           3.28         

Multi‐Family (R3) District 556,004         12.76        162 0.08  3,432             12.69       

Area

Bartlett Crossing ‐ Proposed Density by Zoning District

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 18 of 34



Number

Lot  S.F. Acre Of Units Base Additional Total

19 24,297     0.56   10 8,000  1,500                  17,000

20 21,150     0.49   8 8,000  1,500                  14,000

21 20,115     0.46   8 8,000  1,500                  14,000

22 21,990     0.50   10 8,000  1,500                  17,000

29 31,353     0.72   12 8,000  1,500                  20,000

30 29,979     0.69   12 8,000  1,500                  20,000

31 28,778     0.66   10 8,000  1,500                  17,000

32 19,919     0.46   10 8,000  1,500                  17,000

33 19,910     0.46   10 8,000  1,500                  17,000

34 29,207     0.67   14 8,000  1,500                  23,000

35 36,267     0.83   14 8,000  1,500                  23,000

36 34,586     0.79   10 8,000  1,500                  17,000

37 25,766     0.59   10 8,000  1,500                  17,000

38 21,839     0.50   10 8,000  1,500                  17,000
39 51,801     1.19   14 8,000  1,500                  23,000

Total 416,957   9.57   162   273,000 6.27          0.039  1,685       25.83
Area Required Acres per Square Feet Units per

(Acres) Unit per Unit Acre

Lot Area Area Required (s.f.)

Bartlett Crossing ‐ Multi‐Family District Density Calculations

City of Altoona R3 Lot Requirements:

8,000 SF for first 4 dwellings, plus
1,500 SF for each dwelling thereafter

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 19 of 34



Number Area Required (s.f.)

Lot  S.F. Acre Of Units Base

1 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

2 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

3 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

4 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

5 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

6 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

7 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

8 7,687        0.18   1 4,500 

9 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

10 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

11 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

12 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

13 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

14 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

15 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

16 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

17 6,100        0.14   1 4,500 

18 12,508     0.29   1 4,500 

23 6,586        0.15   1 4,500 

24 6,501        0.15   1 4,500 

25 6,502        0.15   1 4,500 

26 6,502        0.15   1 4,500 

27 6,502        0.15   1 4,500 
28 6,937        0.16   1 4,500 

Total 157,325   3.61   24 108,000  2.48  0.10          4,500                 9.68         

Area Required Acres per Square Feet Units per

(Acres) Unit per Unit Acre

Lot Area

Bartlett Crossing ‐ Twin Home District Density Calculations

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 20 of 34



BARTLETT AVENUE (CTH KB)

BARTLETT AVENUE (CTH KB)

K
A

YS
O

N
 P

LA
C

E

ALTOONA

SCHOOL

DISTRICTC
IT

Y 
O

F 
AL

TO
O

N
A

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
AL

TO
O

N
A

CITY OF ALTOONA

CITY OF ALTOONA

TOWN OF WASHINGTON

CITY OF ALTOONA

CITY OF ALTOONA

TOWN OF WASHINGTON

CITY OF ALTOONA

CITY OF ALTOONA

TOWN OF WASHINGTON

CITY OF ALTOONA

TOWN OF WASHINGTON

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
AL

TO
O

N
A

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

AS
H

IN
G

TO
N

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
AL

TO
O

N
A

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

AS
H

IN
G

TO
N

CITY OF ALTOONA

TOWN OF WASHINGTON

CITY OF ALTOONA

TOWN OF WASHINGTON

CITY OF ALTOONA

TOWN OF WASHINGTON

C
IT

Y 
O

F
AL

TO
O

N
A

TO
W

N
 O

F
W

AS
H

IN
G

TO
N

EXISTING

R1 Z
ONING

PROPOSED

TWIN HOME

ZONING

23
8,9

29
 S.F.

5.4
9 A

C.PROPOSED

R3 Z
ONING

55
6,0

04
 S.F.

12
.76

 AC.

PARK LAND

PARK LAND

B
A

R
TL

ET
T 

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

ZO
N

IN
G

 E
XH

IB
IT

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
A

LT
O

O
N

A
, W

I
71

1 S
. H

IL
LC

RE
ST

 P
AR

KW
AY

 ·
 A

LT
O

O
NA

, W
I  

54
72

0
PH

: (
71

5)
 8

31
-0

65
4 

 ·
  
EM

AI
L:

 IN
FO

@
ES

E.
CO

E
ER

Y
AY

 S
R

E
YIN

 
 

EN
I

NE
ER

IN


City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 21 of 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRVD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE PATH:L:\CIVIL 3D PROJECTS\21151 CDPG DEVELOPERS, LLC - ALTOONA KB SUBDIVISION\3 PRODUCTION DRAWINGS\1 CIVIL PLOTS\21151 ZONING.DWG  L:\CIVIL 3D PROJECTS\21151 CDPG DEVELOPERS, LLC - ALTOONA KB SUBDIVISION\3 PRODUCTION DRAWINGS\1 CIVIL PLOTS\21151 ZONING.DWG  

AutoCAD SHX Text
21151



BARTLETT AVENUE (CTH KB)

BARTLETT AVENUE (CTH KB)

K
A

YS
O

N
 P

LA
C

E

ALTOONA

SCHOOL

DISTRICT

1
2
3

4
5
6

7
8

9
10
11
12

13
14

15
16
17

18

19

20

21

22

2324252627282930
31

32

33

34

35

36

37
38

39

OUTLOT
2

OUTLOT
3

OUTLOT
4

OUTLOT
5

OUTLOT 1

RO
AD

 A
RO

AD
 A

ROAD A ROAD A

R
O

A
D

 B
R

O
A

D
 B

ROAD C

PR
IV

A
TE

 D
R

IV
EW

A
Y

B
A

R
TL

ET
T 

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

LO
T 

LA
YO

U
T

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
A

LT
O

O
N

A
, W

I
71

1 S
. H

IL
LC

RE
ST

 P
AR

KW
AY

 ·
 A

LT
O

O
NA

, W
I  

54
72

0
PH

: (
71

5)
 8

31
-0

65
4 

 ·
  
EM

AI
L:

 IN
FO

@
ES

E.
CO

E
ER

Y
AY

 S
R

E
YIN

 
 

EN
I

NE
ER

IN


City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 22 of 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRVD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
21151

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE PATH:L:\CIVIL 3D PROJECTS\21151 CDPG DEVELOPERS, LLC - ALTOONA KB SUBDIVISION\3 PRODUCTION DRAWINGS\1 CIVIL PLOTS\21151 ZONING.DWG  L:\CIVIL 3D PROJECTS\21151 CDPG DEVELOPERS, LLC - ALTOONA KB SUBDIVISION\3 PRODUCTION DRAWINGS\1 CIVIL PLOTS\21151 ZONING.DWG  



BARTLETT AVENUE (CTH KB)

BARTLETT AVENUE (CTH KB)

K
A

YS
O

N
 P

LA
C

E

ALTOONA

SCHOOL

DISTRICT

1
2
3

4
5
6

7
8

9
10
11
12

13
14

15
16
17

18

19

20

21

22

2324252627282930
31

32

33

34

35

36

37
38

39

OUTLOT
2

OUTLOT
3

OUTLOT
4

OUTLOT
5

OUTLOT 1

RO
AD

 A
RO

AD
 A

ROAD A ROAD A

R
O

A
D

 B
R

O
A

D
 B

ROAD C

PR
IV

A
TE

 D
R

IV
EW

A
Y

WATER MAIN

WATER MAIN

WATER MAIN

WATER MAIN

SANITARY MAIN

SANITARY MAIN

SANITARY MAIN SANITARY MAIN

SANITARY
MAIN

WATER MAIN

B
A

R
TL

ET
T 

C
R

O
SS

IN
G

U
TI

LI
TY

 L
A

YO
U

T
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

A
LT

O
O

N
A

, W
I

71
1 S

. H
IL

LC
RE

ST
 P

AR
KW

AY
 ·

 A
LT

O
O

NA
, W

I  
54

72
0

PH
: (

71
5)

 8
31

-0
65

4 
 ·

  
EM

AI
L:

 IN
FO

@
ES

E.
CO

E
ER

Y
AY

 S
R

E
YIN

 
 

EN
I

NE
ER

IN


City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 23 of 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APRVD:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAE

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
06-08-2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
21151

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX-XX-XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE PATH:L:\CIVIL 3D PROJECTS\21151 CDPG DEVELOPERS, LLC - ALTOONA KB SUBDIVISION\3 PRODUCTION DRAWINGS\1 CIVIL PLOTS\21151 ZONING.DWG  L:\CIVIL 3D PROJECTS\21151 CDPG DEVELOPERS, LLC - ALTOONA KB SUBDIVISION\3 PRODUCTION DRAWINGS\1 CIVIL PLOTS\21151 ZONING.DWG  



BARTLETT CROSSING  
PROPOSED R3 ZONING DESCRIPTION 

 
Part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Number 3575 recorded in Volume 22 of Certified Survey Maps on 
Pages 57-58 as Document Number 1231192, located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 
Section 24, Township 27 North, Range 9 West, City of Altoona, Eau Claire County, Wisconsin. 
 
Commencing at the South Quarter Corner of said Section 24; 
Thence S89°54'32"E, 92.36 feet along the South line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 24; 
Thence N00°23'30"E, 33.00 feet to the Southwest Corner of said Lot 1 and the Point of Beginning; 
Thence N00°23'30"E, 1,038.39 feet along the West line of said Lot 1 to the Southwest right-of-way line 
of County Road “KB”; 
Thence S71°06'56"E, 623.01 feet along said right-of-way line; 
Thence S00°06'07"W, 837.67 feet to the South line of said Lot 1; 
Thence N89°54'32"W, 595.08 feet along said South line to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Said parcel contains 556,004 square feet or 12.76 acres, more or less. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 24 of 34



BARTLETT CROSSING 
PROPOSED TWIN HOME ZONING DESCRIPTION 

 
Part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Number 3575 recorded in Volume 22 of Certified Survey Maps on 
Pages 57-58 as Document Number 1231192, located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 
Section 24, Township 27 North, Range 9 West, City of Altoona, Eau Claire County, Wisconsin. 
 

 

Commencing at the South Quarter Corner of said Section 24; 
Thence S89°54'32"E, 92.36 feet along the South line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 24; 
Thence N00°23'30"E, 33.00 feet to the Southwest Corner of said Lot 1; 
Thence S89°54'32"E, 595.08 feet along the South line of said Lot 1 to the Point of Beginning; 
Thence N00°06'07"E, 837.67 feet to the Southwesterly right-of-way line of County Road “KB”; 
Thence S71°06'56"E, 321.10 feet to the East line of said Lot 1; 
Thence S00°06'07"W, 734.23 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lot 1; 
Thence N89°54'32"W, 304.00 feet along the South line of said Lot 1 to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Said parcel contains 238,929 square feet, or 5.49 total acres, more or less. 
 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 25 of 34



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 26 of 34



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 27 of 34



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 28 of 34



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 29 of 34



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 30 of 34



 
 

ORDINANCE 8A-22             
 

To assign zoning to territory annexed to the City of Altoona  
known as “Bartlett Crossing” 

 

Preamble: 
The City of Altoona adopted Ordinance 6A-22 on June 23, 2022, acting upon petition for direct 
annexation by unanimous consent attaching approximately 18.25 acres of property to the city. Per 
Altoona Municipal Code Section 19.24.030, adoption of Ordinance 6A-22 temporarily assigned the 
territory R1 One Family Dwelling District and referred this matter to the Plan Commission for their 
recommendation of zoning assignment to be acted upon within 120 days of annexation. 
 
THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ALTOONA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section One:   

Having conducted a duly noticed public hearing consistent with WI Stats. §62.23(7)(d) and 
Altoona Municipal Code, and upon recommendation of the Altoona Plan Commission, the following 
zoning districts are hereby applied: 

 
A. That the easterly 5.49 acres of Eau Claire County parcel 201-1024-01-000, Lot 1 CSM # 

3757, further described in Exhibit A and visually depicted in Exhibit B, excepting Outlots 2 
and 3, shall be zoned TH Twin Home District. 
  

B. That the westerly 12.76 acres of Eau Claire County parcel 201-1024-01-000, Lot 1 CSM # 
3757, further described in Exhibit A, and visually depicted in Exhibit B, excepting Outlots 
4 and 5, shall be zoned R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District. 

 
C. Outlots 2 and 5, to be dedicated to the City of Altoona for storm water management, 

visually depicted in Exhibit B, shall be zoned P Public and Conservancy District. 
 
D. Outlots 3 and 4, to be dedicated to the City of Altoona as parkland, visually depicted in 

Exhibit B, shall be zoned P Public and Conservancy District. 
 
Section Two 
 Upon consideration of the appeal, the City Council finds that the zoning assignment is 
consistent with the City of Altoona Comprehensive Plan in accordance with WI Stats. § 66.1001(3). 
 
Section Three: 

That the official zoning map of the City of Altoona be changed to reflect this amendment. 
 
 
 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 31 of 34



Section Four: 
 That this Ordinance need not be codified and shall take effect upon its adoption and 
publication as required by law. 
 

Dated this   25th     day of    August   , 2022. 
 
 

CITY OF ALTOONA 
 

By:        
Approved:         Brendan Pratt, Mayor 
Published:            _                
Adopted:                                              By:        
       Cindy Bauer, City Clerk 
 
Drafted by Joshua Clements, City Planner Consultant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 32 of 34



EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description of Territory for Zoning Assignment 

The following territory shall be assigned TH Twin Home District: 

Part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Number 3575 recorded in Volume 22 of Certified Survey Maps on 
Pages 57-58 as Document Number 1231192, located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 
Section 24, Township 27 North, Range 9 West, City of Altoona, Eau Claire County, Wisconsin. 

Commencing at the South Quarter Corner of said Section 24; 
Thence S89°54'32"E, 92.36 feet along the South line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 24; 
Thence N00°23'30"E, 33.00 feet to the Southwest Corner of said Lot 1; 
Thence S89°54'32"E, 595.08 feet along the South line of said Lot 1 to the Point of Beginning; 
Thence N00°06'07"E, 837.67 feet to the Southwesterly right-of-way line of County Road “KB”; 
Thence S71°06'56"E, 321.10 feet to the East line of said Lot 1; 
Thence S00°06'07"W, 734.23 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lot 1; 
Thence N89°54'32"W, 304.00 feet along the South line of said Lot 1 to the Point of Beginning. 

Said parcel contains 238,929 square feet, or 5.49 total acres, more or less. 

The following territory shall be assigned R-3 Multiple Family Dwelling District: 

Part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Number 3757 recorded in Volume 22 of Certified Survey Maps on 
Pages 57-58 as Document Number 1231192, located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast 
Quarter, Section 24, Township 27 North, Range 9 West, City of Altoona, Eau Claire County, Wisconsin. 

Commencing at the South Quarter Corner of said Section 24; 
Thence S89°54'32"E, 92.36 feet along the South line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 24; 
Thence N00°23'30"E, 33.00 feet to the Southwest Corner of said Lot 1 and the Point of Beginning; 
Thence N00°23'30"E, 1,038.39 feet along the West line of said Lot 1 to the Southwest right-of-way line 
of County Road “KB”; 
Thence S71°06'56"E, 623.01 feet along said right-of-way line; 
Thence S00°06'07"W, 837.67 feet to the South line of said Lot 1; 
Thence N89°54'32"W, 595.08 feet along said South line to the Point of Beginning. 

Said parcel contains 556,004 square feet or 12.76 acres, more or less. 

The following territory shall be assigned P Public and Conservancy District: 

Outlots 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the Plat for Bartlett Crossing, recorded [ information to be added upon recording 
of the document ] 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 33 of 34



EXHIBIT B 
Graphical Illustration of Property for Zoning Assignment. 

 
 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Items 4 and 5 | Page 34 of 34



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022 Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM: Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

(IX) NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 6 - Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the Tree Inventory & Management Plan project. 

The 2022 budget includes a capital project for compiling an inventory of trees in public space and a 

management plan. This is the next step in our urban forestry efforts, and is funded in part by a grant from 

the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. The purpose of this effort is to better prepare the City for 

future challenges similar to the Emerald Ash Borer, Oak Wilt, and other diseases and pests, and to guide 

our ongoing tree planting and maintenance efforts. 

Proposals are due on August 23rd, and staff will distribute a summary and recommendation prior to the 

Council meeting. 

Suggested motion: I move to approve/not approve awarding a contract for the Tree Inventory & 

Management Plan project to  , in the amount of $ . 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 6 | Page 1 of 2



 MEMORANDUM 

 TO:  Altoona City Council 

 FROM:  David A. Walter, P.E. 
 DPW/City Engineer 

 SUBJECT:  Summary of Results 
 ITEM  6  -  Discuss/consider  awarding  a  contract  for  the  Tree  Inventory  &  Management 
 Plan project. 

 Proposals  were  received  for  the  Tree  Inventory  &  Management  Plan  project  on  Tuesday,  August  23,  2022. 
 Three proposals were received as follows. 

 1.  Bluestem Forestry Consulting, Inc. - Total Price: $16,064.00 
 2.  ArborPro Inc. - Total Price: $18,900.00 
 3.  Wachtel Tree Science, Inc. - Total Price: $36,668.00 

 All  three  consultants  are  included  in  the  Wisconsin  DNR  2022  Urban  Forestry  Consultant  Directory  . 
 Staff  has  reviewed  the  proposals  and  recommends  awarding  the  contract  to  Bluestem  Forestry  Consulting, 
 Inc. 

 Suggested  motion:  I  move  to  approve/not  approve  awarding  a  contract  for  the  Tree  Inventory  & 
 Management Plan project to Bluestem Forestry Consulting, Inc. in the amount of $16,064.00. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 6 | Page 2 of 2



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022 Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM: Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

(IX) NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 7 - Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the annual Tree Planting Program. 

As you may be aware, the City has systematically removed ash trees in conformance with the Emerald Ash 

Borer Mitigation plan. Removals on public property are now complete. The City is in its 4th year of 

replacement plantings, and this year’s budget includes funds to continue. The City solicited proposals for 

supply and planting of 50 trees in various locations throughout the city. This urban forestry effort is also 

funded in part by a Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources grant 

Proposals are due on August 23rd, and staff will distribute a summary and recommendation prior to the 

Council meeting. 

Suggested motion: I move to approve/not approve awarding a contract for the annual Tree Planting 

Program to  , in the amount of $ . 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 7 | Page 1 of 7



 MEMORANDUM 

 TO:  Altoona City Council 

 FROM:  David A. Walter, P.E. 
 DPW/City Engineer 

 SUBJECT:  Summary of Results 
 ITEM 7 - Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the annual Tree Planting Program 

 Proposals  were  received  for  the  annual  Tree  Planting  Program  on  Tuesday,  August  23,  2022.  Two 
 proposals were received as follows. 

 1.  Green Oasis - Total Price: $10,569.00 
 2.  Tree Savvy - Total Price: $25,000.00 

 Staff  has  reviewed  the  proposals.  Please  note  that  Tree  Savvy  has  offered  up  a  five  year  warranty, 
 including  five  years  of  trimming,  which  presumably  explains  the  difference  in  price.  The  warranty 
 requirement  in  the  Request  for  Proposals  was  one  year,  in  compliance  with  DNR  requirements.  Copies  of 
 the proposals are attached. 

 Suggested  motion:  I  move  to  approve/not  approve  awarding  a  contract  for  the  annual  Tree  Planting 
 Program to Green Oasis, in the amount of $10,596.00. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 7 | Page 2 of 7



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 7 | Page 3 of 7



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 7 | Page 4 of 7



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 7 | Page 5 of 7



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 7 | Page 6 of 7



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 7 | Page 7 of 7



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022 Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM: Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

(IX) NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 8 - Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the 10th Street Park Irrigation project. 

Included in the 2022 budget is a project to install an irrigation system within 10th Street Park. The scope 

of the project will include all remaining non-irrigated sections. The ballfield has a separate dedicated 

system in place. The proposed system will also aid in establishing healthy turf around the perimeter of the 

Fish House. 

Proposals are due on August 22nd, and staff will distribute a summary and recommendation prior to the 

Council meeting. 

Suggested motion: I move to approve/not approve awarding a contract for the 10th Street Park Irrigation 

project to  , in the amount of $ . 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Businss | Item 8 | Page 1 of 2



 MEMORANDUM 

 TO:  Altoona City Council 

 FROM:  David A. Walter, P.E. 
 DPW/City Engineer 

 SUBJECT:  Summary of Results 
 ITEM 8 - Discuss/consider awarding a contract for the 10th Street Park Irrigation project. 

 Proposals  were  received  for  the  Tree  Inventory  &  Management  Plan  project  on  Monday,  August  22,  2022. 
 One proposal was received as follows. 

 1.  Green Oasis - Total Price: $59,445.84 

 Please  note  that  the  budget  for  this  project  is  $55,000.00  which  was  based  upon  an  estimate  submitted  last 
 year  during  the  budget  process.  The  price  increase  appears  to  be  in  line  with  other  material  cost  increases 
 experienced  during  recent  capital  project  bidding  results.  Other  Parks  projects  have  been  completed 
 under budget, and the remaining funds are adequate to cover this price increase. 

 Suggested  motion:  I  move  to  approve/not  approve  awarding  a  contract  for  the  10th  Street  Park  Irrigation 
 project to Green Oasis in the amount of $59,445.84. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Businss | Item 8 | Page 2 of 2



City of Altoona, WI, Regular Council Meeting Summary, August 25, 2022 Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM: Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

(IX) NEW BUSINESS

ITEM 9 - Discuss/consider awarding contract for the River Prairie Center Kitchen Improvement 

Project. 

As you are aware, the City is partnering with its new operator of River Prairie Center, Hospitality 

Management T & T, to purchase equipment and complete other upgrades necessary to make the RPC 

kitchen a fully functional kitchen as opposed to its current “catering” kitchen configuration. The City issued 

a request for proposals for the work and equipment which are due on August 25, 2022 at 1 PM. Staff will 

send Council the proposals and review them before the Council meeting. At the Council meeting staff will 

provide a recommendation to Council regarding selection of a vendor to complete the work. Attached for 

your review is the request for proposals that was issued. 

Suggested Motion: I move to approve/not approve awarding a contract for the River Prairie Center Kitchen 

Improvement Project to  , in the amount of $ .. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 1 of 41



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

FOR 

RIVER PRAIRIE CENTER KITCHEN IMPROVEMENTS 

PROCUREMENT NO. ADM2022-06 

Submission Deadline:  

August 25, 2022 – 1:00 p.m. CT 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 2 of 41



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
FOR 

RIVER PRAIRIE CENTER KITCHEN IMPROVEMENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section Page No. 

1. Introduction & Background  ....................................................................3 

2. Scope of Services .....................................................................................3 

3. Instructions to Contractors .......................................................................4 

4. Proposal Format .......................................................................................6 

5.   Evaluation / Selection Process .................................................................7 

6. Required Insurance ..................................................................................8 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 3 of 41



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
FOR 

RIVER PRAIRIE CENTER KITCHEN IMPROVEMENTS (THE 
IMPROVEMENTS) 

 
SECTION 1 – INTRODUCTION & BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Altoona is seeking the services of an experienced and qualified firm or company, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Proposer” or “Contractor,” to furnish equipment and labor as an 
integral element of expanding kitchen capabilities at the City’s River Prairie Center. Currently 
the kitchen space is set up as a “catering kitchen” without the equipment and appliances 
necessary to cook meals onsite. The Improvements include installation of equipment required to 
convert the existing catering kitchen to a fully-functioning kitchen where all meals may be 
prepared onsite.  
 
SECTION 2 – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A.  Description of Facilities 
 

The building is located at 1445 Front Porch Place, on property owned by the City of Altoona.  
The building is an event center that hosts a wide variety of events. 
 

B.  Scope of Work 
 
The City is requesting proposals from qualified vendors/contractors to provide the following 
equipment and services.  

 
I. Furnish and install the following commercial grade equipment at River Prairie 

Center, including all necessary hardware and ancillary equipment for connection 
and efficient kitchen operations to include casters and gas connection hoses and 
hardware: 

 
1. DOUBLE STACK GAS CONVECTION OVEN  
2. 36” RANGE WITH GRIDDLE TOP, OVER SHELF AND LOWER OVEN  
3. 24” GAS COUNTERTOP BROILER WITH TABLE  
4. (2) each 40# GAS FLOOR FRYERS  
5. 4 BURNER ELECTRIC TABLE TOP 
6. 12 FOOT EXHAUST HOOD WITH MAKEUP AIR, NO AIR CONDITIONING 
7. 8’ X 20’WALK THROUGH OUTDOOR COMBINATION COOLER/FREEZER 

WITH SHELVING 
 

All contractors intending to submit a proposal are required to meet with owner or 
owner’s representative onsite to view available space, determine appropriate 
equipment sizing and specifications and establish a viable strategy for installation of 
equipment. To schedule and appointment contact Dave Kremer at 651-269-8120. 

 
II. Relocate existing kitchen exhaust hood from its current location to location over 

dish washer. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 4 of 41



 
III. Provide warranty on equipment and installation. 
 

 
SECTION 3 – INSTRUCTION TO PROPOSERS 
 
A. Examination of the Request for Proposals 
 

It is the responsibility of the Proposer to carefully read the entire Request for Proposals 
(RFP) which contains provisions applicable to successful completion and submission of a 
proposal.  If any ambiguity, inconsistencies, or errors are discovered in the RFP, the City 
Administrator must be notified in writing.  Only interpretations or correction of the RFP 
made in writing through addenda by the City Administrator will be considered binding on the 
Proposer.  The RFP consists of all documents identified in the Table of Contents. 

 
B. RFP Timetable 
 

The anticipated schedule for the RFP and contract approval is as follows: 
 
 RFP submittal deadline August 25, 2022, 1:00 PM 
 Council Award of Contract August 25, 2022 

  
C. Proposal Submission 
 

All proposals must be submitted to the City Administrator by email at 
michaelg@ci.altoona.wi.us.  If file size prohibits transmittal via email, the City will accept 
hard copies delivered to City Hall at the address below by the submittal deadline. 
 
 City Administrator 
 CITY OF ALTOONA 
 1303 Lynn Avenue 
 Altoona, WI  54720 
 
Proposers are responsible for informing any commercial delivery service, if used, of all 
delivery requirements and for ensuring that the required address information appears on the 
outer wrapper or envelope used by such service. 
 

D.  Additional Information / Addenda 
 

Requests for additional information or clarification regarding this RFP must be made in 
writing.  Requests should contain the Proposer’s name, address, phone number and e-mail 
address.  E-mail should be addressed to michaelg@ci.altoona.wi.us. 
 
The City will issue responses to inquiries and any other corrections or amendments in written 
addenda issued prior to the Proposal due date.  Proposers should not rely on any 
representations, statements, or explanations other than those made in this RFP or addenda 
issued subsequent to the issuance of this RFP.  Where there appears to be a conflict between 
the RFP and any addenda issued, the last addenda issued will prevail. 
 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 5 of 41

mailto:michaelg@ci.altoona.wi.us
mailto:michaelg@ci.altoona.wi.us


It is the Proposer’s responsibility to assure receipt of all addenda.  The Proposer should 
verify with the City prior to submitting a proposal that all addenda have been received.    
 

 E.  Modified Proposals 
 

A Proposer may submit a modified proposal to replace all or any portion of a previously 
submitted proposal up until the Proposal due date.  The City will only consider the latest 
version of the proposal as part of its deliberations.  

 
F.  Withdrawal of Proposals 
 

Proposals shall be irrevocable until contract award unless the proposal is withdrawn.  A 
proposal may only be withdrawn upon the expiration of ninety days after the due date of the 
proposals if a written request for withdrawal is received by the City prior to the award of a 
contract.  
 

G.  Late Proposals, Late Modifications, and Late Withdrawals 
 

Proposals received after the Proposal due date and time are late and may not be considered, 
as determined in the City’s sole discretion.  Modifications received after the Proposal due 
date are also late and may not be considered as determined in the City’s sole discretion.  
Letters of withdrawal received after the expiration of ninety days from the Proposal due date 
or after the award of contract, whichever comes first, are late and may not be considered as 
determined in the City’s sole discretion.  

 
H.  RFP Postponement or Cancellation 
 

The City may, at its sole and absolute discretion, reject any and all, or parts of any and all 
proposals, re-advertise this RFP, postpone, or cancel at any time this RFP process, or waive 
any irregularities in this RFP and award a contract in the best interest of the City of Altoona.  
 

I.  Proposal Preparation Costs 
 

All expenses involved with the preparation and submission of proposals to the City, or any 
work performed in connection therewith shall be borne by the Proposer(s).  No payment will 
be made for any responses received, nor for any other effort required of or made by the 
Proposer(s) prior to the award of a contract.  

 
J.  Intellectual Property 
 

All items pertaining to this project shall become the intellectual property of the City of 
Altoona and shall be provided to the City in electronic format for both design and record 
drawing documents.  Equipment manuals and record drawing documents, if any, shall 
be delivered to the City within thirty (10) days of completion of construction. 

 
K.  Proposals Not Confidential 
 

Any info submitted as part of a proposal shall not be considered confidential.  No proposal 
information or selection process information will be released until a final recommendation 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 6 of 41



has been prepared by the City or the process is terminated.  Prior to that time, only a list of 
the Proposers will be made public. 

 
M.  Rules, Regulations and Licensing Requirements 
 

All Proposers shall comply with all laws, ordinances, and regulations applicable to the 
services contemplated by the RFP, and shall be responsible for obtaining any and all 
required building permits for the project.  Proposers are presumed to be familiar with all 
Federal, State, and Local laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations that may affect the services 
to be offered. 

 
N.  Review of Proposals for Responsiveness 
 

Each proposal will be reviewed to determine if the proposal is responsive to the submission 
requirements outlined in the RFP.  A responsive proposal is one that follows the 
requirements of the RFP, includes all documentation, is submitted in the format outlined in 
the RFP and is a timely submission.  Failure to comply with these requirements may deem a 
proposal as non-responsive.  

 
O.  Litigation 
 

The contract resulting from this RFP shall be constructed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Wisconsin.  Any litigation between the parties arising out of, or in connection with, 
the contract shall be initiated either in the court system of the State of Wisconsin or the 
United States District Court for the Western District of Wisconsin.  

 
P.  Assignment, Transfer or Subcontracting 
 

The Consultant shall not assign any interest in the contract resulting from this RFP and shall 
not transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or notation) without the prior 
written consent of the City.  Consent will not be given to any proposed assignment which 
would release the Consultant of responsibilities under this contract.  The Consultant must 
obtain prior written consent from the City to delegate, assign, transfer, or subcontract any 
functions or responsibilities required to fulfill the obligations under the contract resulting 
from this RFP. 

 
Q.  Termination for Cause 
 

If the Consultant fails to fulfill any of the obligations under the contract resulting from this 
RFP in a timely manner, or otherwise violates any of the covenants, agreements or 
stipulations material to the contract, the City shall thereupon have the right to immediately 
terminate the contract by giving written notice to the Consultant of such termination. 

 
SECTION 4 – PROPOSAL FORMAT 
 
Proposers should carefully follow the format and instructions outlined below, observing format 
requirements where indicated.  Proposals must contain each of the documents described, fully 
completed.  Proposers shall provide documentation that demonstrates their ability to satisfy the 
qualifications needed to successfully complete the project.  Proposals submitted which do not 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 7 of 41



include the items described or which do not meet the qualification requirements, or which fail to 
provide the necessary supporting documentation may be considered non-responsive and may not 
be considered for award. 
 
A. PART A.1 – PROPOSAL 
 

The Proposal must contain the following information: 
 
A.1.1 – Cover Page:  The Cover Page should include the following information: 
 
 Proposer’s Name 
 Contact Person for RFP  
 Business Address 
 Business Phone 
 Facsimile Phone 
 E-mail Address – Primary Contact 
 Web Site Address – If Available 
 Title of RFP:  River Prairie Center kitchen improvements 

 
A.1.2 – Project Approach:  The Proposal should address how the Proposer will accomplish 
the Scope of Services, as described in Section 2 of this RFP.  The submittal should include 
the following minimum information. 

 
a) Project Implementation – Describe how the Proposer will organize and perform the 

work describe in the Scope of Services.  List the names of any sub-contractors 
intended to be used. Note any services (if any) the Proposer does not intend to 
supply and will need to be furnished by the City including, for example, 
carpentry for any roof penetrations or other carpentry work, plumbing services 
and electrical services. Also, provide drawings to illustrate location of any 
equipment installed. 

 
b) Time Schedule – Include a time schedule to complete the Scope of Services. 
 

A.1.3 - Equipment, Warranty, and Service Information – Provide a list of equipment 
manufacturers, warranty, and service information for all work and equipment installed. 
 
A.1.4 – Price Proposal:  The Proposer shall submit a detailed, itemized price proposal for 
completion of the Scope of Services. 

 
SECTION 5 – EVALUATION / SELECTION PROCESS 
 

The City may select a Consultant on the basis of initial submittals received, without 
discussions.  The City reserves the right to enter into contract negotiations with any Proposer.  
If the City and the selected Proposer cannot negotiate a successful contract, the City may 
terminate said negotiations and begin negotiations with another Proposer.  This process will 
continue until a contract acceptable to the City has been executed or all proposals are 
rejected.  No proposer shall have any rights against the City arising from such negotiations or 
termination thereof. 

 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 8 of 41



 
The City reserves the right to award a contract to the Proposer whose Proposal is deemed to be in 
the best interest of the City of Altoona, as determined in the City’s sole discretion.  The City 
further reserves the right to reject any and all proposals in its sole and absolute discretion. 

 
SECTION 6 – REQUIRED INSURANCE 
 
The Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against 
claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with 
the performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or 
employees. 
 
A. Minimum Scope of Insurance 

The Contractor shall obtain insurance of the types described below: 
 

1.  Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 
vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 
00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage.  If necessary, 
the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage.  

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form 
CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent 
contractors and personal injury and advertising injury. The City shall be named as 
an insured under the Contractor’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy 
with respect to the work performed for the City. 

3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Wisconsin. 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Contractor's profession. 
B. Minimum Amounts of Insurance 

 
The Contractor shall maintain the following insurance limits: 
 
1.  Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 

injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 
2.  Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
3.  Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 
C. Other Insurance Provisions 

 
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions 
for Automobile Liability, Professional Liability and Commercial General Liability 
insurance: 

   
1. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to 

the work being completed for the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 9 of 41



insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be in excess of the 
Contractor's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

2. The Contractor's insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 
cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City.   

 
D. Acceptability of Insurers 

 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. 
 

E. Verification of Coverage 
 
Contractor shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the amendatory 
endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured 
endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Contractor before 
commencement of work. 

City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 10 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 11 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 12 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 13 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 14 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 15 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 16 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 17 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 18 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 19 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 20 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 21 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 22 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 23 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 24 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 25 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 26 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 27 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 28 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 29 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 30 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 31 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 32 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 33 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 34 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 35 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 36 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 37 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 38 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 39 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 40 of 41



City Council | August 25, 2022 
New Business | Item 9 | Page 41 of 41



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Altoona City Council 

FROM:  Michael Golat, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Summary of THURSDAY, AUGUST 25, 2022 Council Meeting Items 

Provided below for your consideration is a summary of the THURSDAY, AUGUST 25 Council Meeting 

agenda items. 

ITEM 10 - Discuss/consider a contract amendment with MSA Professional Services for engineering 

services related to Well #8 and #9. 

A previously approved contract with MSA Professional Services included engineering services for Well 

#8, including test well construction, well and wellhouse design, and bid package preparation.  Since that 

time, the need for an additional well was identified.  Completed activities related to the new well include 

the purchase of property within the Prairie View Ridge subdivision for Well #9, as well as completion of 

the related test well.  The attached contract amendment includes engineering services for the design of Well 

#9, as well as bidding and construction services for both wells.  The proposed fee reflects 12.4% of the 

estimated construction cost, which is within the customary range for engineering services. 

The 2022 budget includes adequate funds for this year’s efforts.  Remaining activities for next year will be 

programmed into the proposed 2023 budget.  The source of funds will be a combination of TID #4 and the 

Safe Drinking Water Loan Program. 

Suggested motion:  I move to approve/not approve amending the engineering contract with MSA 

Professional Services in the amount of $262,000.00 and authorizing the City Administrator to sign the 

contract. 

City Council \ August 25, 2022 
New Business \ Page 1 of 7



Page 1 of 1 
G:\08\08451\08451019\Contract\Amendment #2 Well#9 & Construction\Altoona 08451019 Amend Contract_Well 9 & Construction.docx 

Amendment 
No. 2 

To: City of Altoona Date of Issuance: 8/16/2022 
MSA Project No.:   08451019 

This is an amendment to the Agreement dated October 19, 2019 and does acknowledge that 
MSA Professional Services, Inc. (MSA) is authorized to begin work on the following project 
amendment:  

Project Name: Well #8 Development 

The project scope has changed due to: Addition of Well and Wellhouse #9 Final Design, 
and Wellhouses #8 and #9 Construction 

The scope of the work authorized is: See Attachment B – Scope of Services 

The schedule to perform the work is: Approximate Start Date:  5/30/2022 
Approximate Completion Date: June 2024 

The estimated fee for the work: $262,000 

Authorization for the work described above shall amend the Agreement between MSA and 
OWNER.  Any attachments or exhibits referenced in this Amendment are made part of the 
Agreement.  Payment for these services will be on a time and materials basis. 

Approval:  MSA shall commence work on this project in accordance with your written 
authorization.  This authorization is acknowledged by signature of the authorized representatives 
of the parties to this Amendment.  A copy of this Amendment signed by the authorized 
representatives shall be returned for our files.   

CITY OF ALTOONA MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC. 

Mike Golat, City Administrator Rob Uphoff, PE, Vice President 

Date:  Date: 8/16/2021 

Attest:  

Cindy Bauer, City Clerk Brad Stuczynski, PE, Project Manager 

Date:  Date: 8/16/2021 

1303 Lynn Avenue 1230 South Boulevard 

Altoona, WI 54720 Baraboo, WI 53913 

Phone: 715-839-6092 Phone: 608-356-2771 

City Council \ August 25, 2022 
New Business \ Page 2 of 7



Page 1 of 1 
(Attachment A: MSA Standard Rate Schedule) 

G:\08\08451\08451019\Contract\Amendment #2 Well#9 & Construction\Altoona 08451019 Amend Contract_Well 9 & Construction.docx 

ATTACHMENT A: 
RATE SCHEDULE 

 

CLASSIFICATION LABOR RATE 
Administrative ............................................................................................ $  80 – $140/hr. 
Architects ................................................................................................... $  65 – $190/hr. 
Community Development Specialists ......................................................... $125 – $150/hr. 
Digital Design ............................................................................................. $150 – $170/hr. 
Environmental Scientists/Hydrogeologists .................................................. $100 – $150/hr. 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) ...................................................... $  80 – $170/hr. 
Housing Administration .............................................................................. $  80 – $140/hr. 
Inspectors/Zoning Administrators ............................................................... $  95 – $120/hr. 
IT Support .................................................................................................. $150 – $170/hr. 
Land Surveying .......................................................................................... $  85 – $170/hr. 
Landscape Designers & Architects ............................................................. $  85 – $190/hr. 
Municipal Advisor ....................................................................................... $150 – $190/hr. 
Planners..................................................................................................... $  90 – $150/hr. 
Principals ................................................................................................... $170 – $300/hr. 
Professional Engineers/Designers of Engineering Systems ....................... $130 – $170/hr. 
Project Managers ....................................................................................... $135 – $230/hr. 
Real Estate Professionals .......................................................................... $120 – $130/hr. 
Staff Engineers .......................................................................................... $  65 – $120/hr. 
Technicians ................................................................................................ $  85 – $130/hr. 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator ....................................................... $  75 – $  90/hr. 
 

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
Copies/Prints .................................................................................... Rate based on volume 

Specs/Reports ....................................................................... $10 
Copies ................................................................................... $0.20/page 
Plots ...................................................................................... $0.015/sq.in. 
Flash Drive ............................................................................ $10 

GPS Equipment ................................................................................ $30/hour 
Laser Level ....................................................................................... $10/per day  
Mailing/UPS ...................................................................................... At cost 
Mileage – Reimbursement ................................................................ IRS Rate – IRS Rate + 
$5/day 
Mileage – MSA Vehicle ..................................................................... $0.70 mile 
Nuclear Density Testing .................................................................... $25.00/day + $10/test 
Organic Vapor Field Meter ................................................................ $100/day 
PC/CADD Machine ........................................................................... Included in labor rates 
Robotic Survey Equipment ................................................................ $40/hour 
Stakes/Lath/Rods .............................................................................. At cost 
Travel Expenses, Lodging, & Meals .................................................. At cost 
Traffic Counting Equipment & Data Processing................................. At cost 
Geodimeter ....................................................................................... $30/hour 
Drone Flight ...................................................................................... $390/flight 
 
 
 Labor rates represent an average or range for a particular job classification.  These rates are in effect until 

December 31, 2022. 

City Council \ August 25, 2022 
New Business \ Page 3 of 7



1 of 4 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

AMENDMENT #2 TO CONTRACT DATED 10/24/2019 

ADDITIONAL SCOPE OF WORK for PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  

 

Project:   Well #8 Development 
 

Client: City of Altoona, Wisconsin 

Date: August 16, 2022 

 
Description of the Project:  

 Construction of a new municipal well (Well #9), and related facilities located on property at the 
intersection of Baumbach Way and Kyler Street with the following general components and 
characteristics: 

- Sandstone final well with a depth of approximately 160 feet. 

- Vertical turbine pump and vertical hollow-shaft motor to produce approximately 300 gallons 
per minute. 

- Exterior standby generator with automatic transfer switch. 

- Masonry wellhouse building to house pumping equipment, electrical controls, chemicals 

- Wellhouse design to allow for expansion to accommodate future treatment equipment. 
Note: Future treatment equipment is assumed to be a 3-cell ion exchange system with a 
loading rate of 4.6 gpm/sf intended to remove nitrates. 

- Chemical feed equipment for addition of caustic soda and sodium hypochlorite, with provisions 
for one (1) future chemical addition.  

- Motor control/supervisory control at wellhouse. 

- Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) upgrades to be incorporated into existing 
system. 

- Site work to include asphalt driveway/parking area. 

- Connecting water mains (to Kyler Street). 

- Connecting sanitary sewer lateral (to Kyler Street)    

- Utility services: 3-phase electric, fiber optic and natural gas 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Design, bidding and construction phase services for final well #9, wellhouse #9 facilities, and 
related improvements to complete the project described above.  All work will be performed in 
conformance with the standards stipulated by the Engineers Joint Contract Document Committee 
and published jointly by the American Consulting Engineer Council and the National Society of 
Professional Engineers. 
 
Final Well #9 Design 

Assumes concurrent design and bidding schedule with final Well #8 

 Project Management and internal quality control reviews 

 Prepare bidding documents 

 Correspondence with Owner throughout design and bidding  

 Prepare advertisement for bids and provide to City for advertising 

 Note: Advertising costs will be invoiced directly to Owner 

 Distribute bidding documents to prospective bidders 

 Respond to Contractor questions during bidding phase and issue one (1) addendum 

 Attend and conduct bid opening online 

City Council \ August 25, 2022 
New Business \ Page 4 of 7



2 of 4 
 

 Prepare bid tabulation, evaluate bids, and make recommendation to Owner 

 Prepare contract documents for execution by Owner and Contractor 

 Reimbursables (mileage, copies, submittal fees) 
 
Final Wellhouse #9 Design  

 Project Management and internal Quality Control Reviews 

 Meet with Owner and review MSA’s “Wellhouse Design Checklist” and plan set 
progress (2 meetings) 

 Correspondence with Owner to provide updates and discuss general design details 

 Perform topographic survey of site and base map development  

 Prepare plans and specifications for a final wellhouse facility which includes the design 
of the following: 

 Final Site/grading plan 

 Erosion Control plan 

 Architectural 

 Mechanical, heating, ventilating, and plumbing systems 

 Process mechanical  

 Chemical feed systems 

 Electrical, emergency power, and control systems 

 Connecting water main and sanitary sewer 

 Stormwater conveyance (no post construction stormwater treatment) 

 Prepare specifications and bidding documents for wellhouse and related facilities  

 Coordination with electric, fiber optic and natural gas utilities 

 Prepare cost estimate for well, wellhouse and related facilities 

 Review final plans, specifications, and bidding documents with Owner (over virtual 
meeting) 

 Submit plans, specifications, and checklists to WDNR on behalf of the Owner for the 
following: 
• Wellhouse building 
• Chemical feed 
• Well pump  
• Water Main Extension  

 Respond and revise plans, permits, specifications and other documents based on 
review comments from WDNR. 

 Coordinate City Building permit (to be submitted by Contractor) 

 Coordinate Wellhead Protection Plan (WHPP) 

  (Note: WHPP to be completed by Wisconsin Rural Water Association.)  

 Assistance with SDWL Application preparation and submittal. 

 Reimbursables (mileage, copies, submittal fees) 
 
Wellhouses #8 and #9 Bidding  

Note: Coordination and facilitation of one (1) bid opening was included in the original 
contract. The original scope assumed bidding both the well and wellhouse together at 
one time. A second bid opening (Wellhouses #8 and #9) is considered additional to the 
original scope 

 Prepare advertisement for bids and provide to City for advertising 

 Note: Advertising costs will be invoiced directly to Owner 

 Distribute electronic plans/specifications to statewide "plan rooms" 

 Solicit prospective bidders utilizing the Quest electronic bidding network 

 Correspondence with prospective bidders and material supplier questions during 
project advertising period 

 Prepare and distribute addenda to plan holders (two assumed) 

 Conduct bid opening at MSA office and simultaneous virtual meeting 

 Review bids and prepare bid tabulation 

City Council \ August 25, 2022 
New Business \ Page 5 of 7



3 of 4 
 

 Make recommendation to Owner on contractor selection and prepare contract 
documents for execution by Owner and Contractor 

 Prepare and distribute construction contract documents 

 Reimbursables (mileage, copies, submittal fees) 
 

Final Well Construction Related Services 
Assumes both Well #8 and Well #9 will be awarded to the same contractor and be 
completed in 2022 

 Project management and internal quality control reviews 

 Attend and conduct preconstruction meeting; prepare minutes and distribute 

 Perform one-time construction staking for final well and wellhouse building corners 

 Review shop drawings 

 Provide periodic construction observation (70 hrs. on-site estimated plus travel) and 
documentation 

 Process pay applications (3) and change order requests (2)  

 Preparation for and attendance at Owner meetings to provide updates (2 assumed) 

 Correspondence with Owner and updates for Council meetings as necessary 

 Evaluate final well test pumping results; finalize pump selection 

 Prepare “punch” list of required corrections before final close-out and issue certificate 
of substantial completion 

 Prepare record drawing and provide to Owner in electronic pdf format 

 Reimbursables (mileage, copies, submittal fees) 
 
Wellhouses #8 and #9 Construction Related Services 

Assumes both Wellhouses #8 and Well #9 will be awarded to the same contractor and 
be completed in between November 2022 and April 2024 

 Project management and internal quality control reviews 

 Preparation for and attendance at meetings with Owner to provide updates (3 assumed) 

 Attend and conduct preconstruction meeting; prepare minutes and distribute. 

 Attend and conduct masonry preconstruction meeting; prepare minutes and distribute. 

 Prepare “Construction Document” set of plans and specifications based on bid 
addenda 

 Review shop drawings and submittals 

 Review and process pay applications (16 assumed) 

 Coordinate and process change order requests (7 assumed) 

 Perform construction staking for wellhouse, driveway subgrade, driveway basecourse, 
water main and sanitary sewer.(4 trips assumed) 

 Provide periodic construction observation and documentation for major items 
throughout the project (220 hours on-site estimated plus travel). 

 Correspondence with Contractor to discuss progress and construction details 

 Correspondence and written monthly updates to Owner 

 Witness generator and wellhouse start-up, and evaluate test results. (4 trips assumed) . 

 Start-up review for new well pump, motor, controls, and related facilities  

 Prepare “punch” list of required corrections before final close-out.  This will include a 
project walk-thru with the Owner, Contractor(s) and MSA 

 Review manufacturer’s operation and maintenance manuals (supplied by Contractors 
and Suppliers) 

 Prepare record drawings and provide to Owner in electronic pdf format. 

 Notify Owner at 11-months after substantial completion and perform follow-up warranty 
inspection 

 Reimbursables (mileage, copies, submittal fees) 

 

 

City Council \ August 25, 2022 
New Business \ Page 6 of 7



4 of 4 
 

Additional Services 

The following additional services are not included in the Scope of Basic Services, but are available 
at standard billing rates upon request: 

 Publishing costs for public notices (including Advertisement for Bids) 

 Wellhead Protection Plan preparation 

 Additional Meetings 

 Additional Construction Observation 

 Utility Map Updates 

 Water Model Updates 

 Storm water NOI/Permitting to DNR or City 
o Permit is not required as project site disturbs less than one acre 

 Sanitary Sewer Extension permit application 

 Property surveys, CSM’s, and legal descriptions. 

 Assistance with funding administration (i.e., Safe Drinking Water Loan Program) and 
wage rate monitoring 
o To be provided by a separate MSA Contract 

 
Owner’s Responsibilities 
Owner’s responsibilities include the following: 

 Provide requested information and documentation for the existing water system 

 Provide plans for USH 12 utility extensions project and coordinate connections and 
limits of scope. 

 Secure land and easements as necessary 

 Publishing costs for public notices, including Advertisement for Bids 
 
Estimated Fee 
 

Phase Description Fee  

Final Design - Well & Wellhouse #9 $80,000  

Wellhouses #8/9 Bidding $6,000  

Wells #8/9 Construction $27,000  

Wellhouses #8/9 Construction $149,000  

Total Estimated Fee $262,000  

 

Estimated Schedule 
 

Phase Description Month/Year 

Wellhouses #8/9 Bidding Sept 2022  

Wells #8/9 Substantial Completion  Dec 2022  

Wellhouse #8 Substantial Completion (well online) Sept 2023 

Wellhouse #9 Substantial Completion (well online) Apr 2024  

Wellhouses #8/9 Final Completion  June 2024  

 

 

City Council \ August 25, 2022 
New Business \ Page 7 of 7


	Agenda - 2022-08-25
	Minutes DRAFT - 2022-08-11
	Summary - 2022-08-25
	New Business - Item 1 Summary
	New Business - Item 2 Summary and Materials
	New Business - Item 3 Summary
	New Business - Items 4 and 5 Summary and Materials
	New Business - Item 6 Summary and materials
	New Business - Item 7 Summary and materials
	New Business - Item 8 Summary and materials
	New Business - Item 9 Summary and Materials
	New Bus Item 10 Binder.pdf

	Return to Agenda: 


